
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, March 7, 2012 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of February 1, 2012 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman’s Report 


- Executive Director’s Report 


- Langhorne Borough Planning and Visioning 
Presentation: Cathy Gauthier 


 
4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 
 
5. Old Business 


 
6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 


 


 
  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


Minutes of Meeting 
January 4, 2012 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. 


Hoffman; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. Johnson; 


Donna W. Byers; Margaret A. McKevitt; David A. Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley; Michael A. 
Roedig 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of 


silence and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 4, 2012: Upon motion of 


Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the minutes of the January 4, 2012 meeting were approved.  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Chairman’s Report 
Mr. Kisselback requested Ms. Bush coordinate a spring BCPC meeting at the Churchville Nature 
Center. Other locations for future meetings were discussed and included the SPCA in Lahaska or 
Richlandtown Borough, Pennsbury Manor, and a location in the Riegelsville Borough area. 
 
Executive Director’s Report 
An update on the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan will be discussed under Old Business. 
 
Ms. Bush said the brainstorming notes from last month’s meeting on economic development were 
passed along to Commissioner Loughery. An introductory session of the Bucks County Economic 
Development Council took place on January 24th. 
 
Ms. Bush announced that a Request for Proposal for space utilization and renovation of the Bucks 
County Courthouse and Administration Building Study was being issued today.  
 
Ms. Bush updated the board on BCPC efforts to branch out to municipalities. Perkasie Borough and 
Northampton Township are interested in downtown revitalization, traffic issues, and/or economic 
development. Ms. Bush added that Solebury Township is seeking assistance in establishing a 
comprehensive plan. 
  
Ms. Bush reported that Bucks County is reviewing local municipal housing regulations to ensure 
compliance under the federal Fair Housing Act for Community Development Block Grant funding 
eligibility. Mr. Koehler said the BCPC highlighted issues and offered assistance for ten 
municipalities. Eight of the municipalities have accepted assistance and are working with the BCPC 
to bring them in compliance under the Fair Housing regulations. 
 
Mr. Koehler said through connections with ESRI, a company that offers GIS, project consulting 
and implementation services, the BCPC has access to free trial tools to pull economic data and 
provide close to a full market analysis. Mr. Koehler said a marketing analysis could be helpful to 
Northampton Township’s master plan for the Village of Holland. This information is also important 







4 


 


for the marketability of the downtown area of Langhorne Borough, which is already under contract. 
Discussion followed on the Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission’s Report on Growth 
and projections. 
 
Annual Report of Review Activity 
Mr. Roedig gave a PowerPoint presentation and overview on the 2011 Annual Report of Review 
Activity. The report is based on reviews completed by BCPC staff in 2011. Mr. Roedig said the 235 
total reviews conducted for proposals submitted to the BCPC in 2011 is the lowest number of 
reviews since 1970, indicating continued impact by the strained economy and housing industry. Mr. 
Roedig highlighted development trends and proposals and discussed comparative results with 
previous years’ development in Bucks County. Overall there was a reduction in all review types, but 
43 percent of the reviews were major reviews and 38 percent were municipal reviews. Land 
impacted by development was 392 acres which is the lowest amount since recording such data and 
over 500 acres less than 2010. The 2011 number of proposed residential units (588) is a 42 percent 
increase from last year’s 575 units which was a 40 percent decrease from 2009; and the amount of 
proposed nonresidential area (2.7 million square feet) is a 149 percent increase from 2010’s figure of 
1.1 million. Commercial space made up most of the proposed development with 43 percent of 
proposed nonresidential space, only the third time since 2004 that it has the largest percentage. 
 
Discussion followed on growth and development trends, economic impacts, and the ratio of 
preserved land versus land impacted by development. Mr. Kisselback polled the board for questions. 
Ms. Pierce thanked Mr. Roedig for his excellent presentation. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Act 247 Reviews 
The reviews of February 1, 2012, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On 
motion of Mr. Hoffman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board approved the February 1, 2012, Act 247 
reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: Mr. Roedig provided a PowerPoint presentation on a proposed layout of the 


web version of the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Roedig walked the board through the 
various actions the webpage will offer. Discussion focused on updating information and the 
accessibility of documents through links. The board was pleased with the rendition presented 
stating it was nicely done and very appealing. Mr. McIlhinney added that while the plan has been 
adopted, supplemental materials and formatting/style changes are permissible. 


 
A draft pamphlet was handed to the board on the 2011 Bucks County Comprehensive Plan. Ms. Bush 
requested the board review this document as a summary to convey the Plan. 


 
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Goodnoe opened the floor for discussion on Model Tree Protection and 


the compatibility of certain trees with utility lines. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press 


questions. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 3:05 P.M. 


 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary  







5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


February 2012 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of New Britain 
Borough, Newtown Area, Buckingham Township, Sellersville Borough, and the Quakertown 
Area Planning Committee. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Attended Planning Commission meeting to 
discuss details and arrangements for the Borough’s town hall meeting and developed a draft 
outline for interactive work stations to facilitate the public input process. Continued preparation 
of chapters related to demographic, land use, and development trends, historic resources, natural 
resources, and goals and objectives.  


 Perkasie Borough – Prepared an analysis and recommendations regarding a request from 
Moulton Builders for Borough Council to remove the age restriction on the approved plan for 
140 multifamily units that was submitted under the borough’s Housing for Elderly use. 
Regarding the Zoning Ordinance Update, continued addressing comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. Also met with the Borough manager regarding 
a TCDI grant and comprehensive plan proposal. 


 Sellersville Borough – Researched and prepared analysis of single family detached parking 
requirements information related to the comprehensive plan issues. 


 Quakertown Area Planning Committee (QAPC) – Prepared the draft Quakertown Area 
Planning Committee 2011 Annual Report for the committee’s review and approval. The QAPC 
approved the annual report at their January 10, 2012 meeting. Arranged for John Brunner, 
Recreation Planner with the Appalachian Mountain Club, to attend the QAPC’s January meeting 
to provide a status update on the Highlands Program trail planning efforts in Upper Bucks 
County. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Completed 1st draft of a public brochure advertising the adopted comprehensive plan and its 
purpose and contents.  


 Continued development of a mixed-use development study, which will include analysis of Bucks 
County municipalities and development of model ordinance language. 


 Continued development of community indicators, which are a pivotal component of the 
comprehensive plan’s Plan Implementation and Plan Monitoring section. 


 Continued preparation of a hyperlinked version of plan narrative that will be a building block to 
the web version of the plan. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, and community 
background (or profiles). 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 







6 


 


 Continued review and analysis of 2000 and 2010 block level census data for certain 
municipalities exhibiting unusual population and housing changes. 


 Prepared the 2011 Annual Report of Review Activity. 


 Began preparation of recommended ordinance provisions to address fair housing impediments 
for certain municipalities. 


 Began the process of completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 8 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 4 Sketch Plans 


 5 Municipals 


 2 Sewage Facility Planning Module 


 1 Transportation Impact Study 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Working with project partners regarding update of educational brochure and coordinating timing 
and logistics for composting bin distribution event.   


 Ongoing communiqué with EPA food composting grant partners regarding educational 
information and outreach and community workshops. 


 Attended Bowman’s Hill Land Ethics Symposium. 


 Coordinating efforts with DVRPC regarding LED Traffic Signal Conversion Program letter and 
survey to municipalities and seminar logistics.  


 Participated in natural gas drilling webinar conducted by the Pennsylvania Association of 
Township Officials. 


 Prepared for and held Quarterly meeting of the BEGIN Committee. 
 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Attended PADEP MS4 workshop. 


 Provided DCNR with stormwater management educational materials. 


 Provided input to residents and organizations regarding stormwater management efforts. 
 


Potential Grant Projects 


 Formulating Water Resources Education Network (WREN) grant proposal. 


 Updating Natural Resources Matrix for Bucks County municipalities to assist with grant efforts. 


 Working with Quakertown area municipalities and QAPC representatives to inquire interest in 
partnering on WREN grant application/project. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Planning 


 Finalized field research relative to the Route 202 on-road bike lane project identifying potential 
obstacles to development of the bike lane. 


 Began drafting initial narrative of final report of bike lane study in conjunction with 
transportation planners. 


 Began assembling grant application for DCNR (C2P2) - Community Recreation and 
Conservation Program for the purpose of conducting a multi-use trail feasibility study for the 
Neshaminy Creek extending from the Forks of the Neshaminy to the confluence of the 
Neshaminy with Core Creek. 







7 


 


 Preparing executive summary of Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan. 
 


Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Followed up on second request for municipal adoption of the Bucks County Hazard Mitigation 
Plan. 


 Organized, filed and sent copies of municipal HMP adoptions to PEMA and FEMA. 


 Currently we are waiting on one last municipality to adopt a resolution. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Scouted new sites for HHW and electronics. 


 Coordinated implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 
 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 


General Transportation Planning  


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. 


 Attended Bensalem Greenway Project Meeting. 


 Attended Holland Area Project Meeting. 
   
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed Bucks County Transportation Management Association’s proposed FY 2013 Work 
Program. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Attended Congestion Management and Air Quality Meeting. 


 Reviewed Accessing the Tidal Delaware by DVRPC. 


 Reviewed Annual Congestion Management Program Supplemental Project Status Memorandum. 


 Reviewed DVRPC Long Range Plan Project Evaluation Criteria. 


 Reviewed Congestion Management and Air Quality Project Evaluation Criteria. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 


Geographic Information System (GIS) Program 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 







8 


 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editor processes of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Provided technical support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Continued field verification and identification of 911 common area sites throughout the county. 


 Attended FEMA Region III Coastal Study Presentation at EMA in Ivyland. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Finalized work on the Community Maps Project. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
  







9 


 


Executive Director’s Report 
February 2012 


 
 
Act 13 – How the new oil and gas drilling well affects Bucks County 
Much time has been spent analyzing and reading the new gas drilling bill and how it affects the 
county and our municipalities. There are conflicting views. The County probably does not have to 
take any action to benefit from the statewide initiatives, but the impact on local zoning is still being 
explored. 
 
Speaking Engagements 
 
Pennridge Area Chamber of Commerce – I joined Commissioner Loughery in a presentation to the 
Pennridge Chamber on what the County is doing about economic development. We also heard from 
Norm Brewer of CareerLink who explained what employers are looking for in employees. 
 
Delaware Valley College – I made a presentation to a class at DVC on what the County does. 
 
Municipal Outreach  
We are working or proposing to assist with a number of new projects: 


 New Britain Borough Business Development Committee has asked for our help 


 Perkasie Borough – downtown strategies 


 Holland – transportation and land use issues 


 Tinicum Township – Comprehensive planning 


 Solebury Township – Comprehensive planning 
 
Courthouse Renovation  
 
The RFP went out for engineers and architects to assess the courthouse and rotunda to see how it 
can be efficiently used for county offices, after some of the space is vacated upon completion of the 
Justice Center. The bids are due on April 16. 
 
Grant Applications  
We are working on a number of grant applications for assistance with planning work, including 
implementation of the comprehensive plan, water resources protection, streamside buffering along 
the Neshaminy, and a few trails grants.  
 
  




























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
 
 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, September 5, 2012 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of August 1, 2012 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman’s Report 
- Executive Director’s Report 
- Municipal Economic Development Initiative – Launch and Progress 


Lynn Bush 
Lisa Wolff 
Tim Koehler 


 
4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 
 


5. Old Business 
 


6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 
 


 
  







3 
 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


Minutes of Meeting 
August 1, 2012 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; 


David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. 
Johnson; Donna W. Byers; Maureen Wheatley; Dennis P. Livrone; Paul W. 
Gordon 


GUESTS: James McGinnis, Courier Times 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 


and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JULY 11, 2012:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 7-0 the minutes of 


the July 11, 2012 meeting were approved. There were no abstentions. 
 


INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 Chairman’s Report 


There was no Chairman’s Report. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush provided the board with a copy of the list of projects under the Transportation 
Improvement Program. 
 
Ms. Bush said several Bucks County municipalities were part of a multi-municipal lawsuit that 
challenged the Act 13 oil and gas drilling well regulations. Ms. Bush highlighted the challenges 
which pertain to statewide zoning provisions. The Commonwealth Court upheld the challenges 
and an appeal was filed to take this decision to the Supreme Court. Discussion followed on the 
constitutionality of the State’s determination. 
 


 Bucks County Bike Plan Update 
Presenter David Johnson 
Mr. Johnson gave a PowerPoint presentation on the April 2012 draft of the Bucks County 
Bicycle Master Plan which was developed by the Bucks County Bicycle Task Force (BCBTF) 
created in 2008. Mr. Johnson summarized the purposes of the project that include: a vision for a 
county-wide network with regional and local connections; identify most important bicycle 
generators and provide recommendations; provide a resource for local municipalities to assist 
with planning and implementation of bicycle facilities across the county; identify standards that 
improve safety for bicyclists, pedestrians, and motorists; identify priority roadways for bike lanes; 
municipal involvement; create a safe environment for pedestrians and bicyclists; use the master 
planning process to enhance partnerships that will advance implementation; and develop 
educational strategies. Mr. Johnson highlighted the plan’s goals and objectives, public 
involvement, plan recommendations, bike rider and facility types, and recommended major 
spines. Mr. Johnson said the cost of the plan was $80,000 and following the next public meeting, 
the BCBTF will return to the board and request plan approval. The plan would then be 
submitted to the Commissioners for adoption in the fall of 2012. 







4 
 


Ms. Bush added that the county places its trail efforts within the county parks system, and the 
Bike Plan is a road map for Bucks County communities. Many communities have been 
successful in developing trails in conjunction with development; however, there has not been 
much development over the past few years. 
 
Discussion focused on the purpose of local bike sheds, the responsibility and importance of 
safety education for drivers and bicyclists, the potential for trails on railroad rights-of-way; 
marketing and cross-referencing similar bicycle plans, and whether bicyclist identification 
initiatives exist.  
 


 Upper Neshaminy Creek Greenway – Trail Feasibility Study Grant 
Presenter Paul Gordon 
The Bucks County Planning Commission applied for and was awarded a $60,000 grant funded 
by the William Penn Foundation under the Regional Trails Program and administered by the 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission. The funds will be used for the Upper 
Neshaminy Creek Greenway Multi-Use Trail Feasibility Study. Mr. Gordon gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the feasibility study and highlighted the project scope, existing conditions, and 
existing trails along the Neshaminy main stem greenway from Doylestown to 
Bensalem/Delaware River, and the Neshaminy main stem greenway that includes Doylestown, 
Warwick and Buckingham. Mr. Gordon said within the greenway are 9.5 miles of county-owned 
land, 8 municipal parks, some existing trails, and privately owned land.  
 
The grant period is from August 2012 through July 2013. Mr. Gordon hopes to expand on the 
project by securing a Community Recreation and Conservation Program grant from the 
Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources which would cover the 
middle section of the Neshaminy Creek. 
 
Discussion focused on the development of trails within floodplains and park linkages. 


 
ACTION ITEMS 
 Act 247 Reviews 


BCPC review #37-12-1R was added to the August 1, 2012 reviews. Mr. Koehler provided a 
background on the Richlandtown Borough review to amend the zoning ordinance use: Nursing 
Home Use/Wetland Margin. 
 
The reviews of August 1, 2012 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
On motion of Mr. Pellegrino, seconded by Mr. Nyman, the board approved the August 1, 2011 
Act 247 reviews, including BCPC review #37-12-1R. There were no abstentions. 
 


OLD BUSINESS: Ms. Bush suggested that the BCPC staff continue to mail and email the BCPC 
meeting packet. Mr. Kisselback agreed. 
 


ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 3:00 PM. 
 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







5 
 


Executive Director’s Report 
August 2012 


 
Grange Fair – We had several displays at the Grange Fair, highlighting planning programs, 
recycling, and open space. Featured at the Commissioners’ Meeting at the Grange were the 
preservation of two open space projects: a farm in Buckingham and Delaware River grant for 
Bensalem.  
 
We also conducted an informal survey for visitors to our display, asking them to rank the most 
important issues facing Bucks County. Results are attached on the next page. 
 
Municipal Economic Development Initiative – We also launched our new Municipal Economic 
Development Initiative at the Grange Fair meeting, where it was announced. A newspaper article 
followed last week, and we have started working with a couple of communities on this already. 
 
We will report on this at the meeting next week. 
  







6 
 


 
  







 


 


 
 
 


2


 


2012 Grange


7 


e Survey Res
 


sults 


 







8 
 


  







9 
 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
August 2012 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 


COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 Meeting Attendance—Attended regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 


Township, Perkasie Borough, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee.  
 Buckingham Township Comprehensive Plan—Presented draft plan to the Board of 


Supervisors for consideration of plan adoption. 
 Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance—Borough Council adopted zoning ordinance at its 


meeting on August 6. 
 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Attended a work session with core planning 


group and reviewed the Introduction and Early History, Community Goals and Objectives and 
Land Use chapters. Continued preparation of draft chapters related to the comprehensive plan. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted kickoff meeting which included a 
public visioning session to identify key issues. Continued initial data collection and draft 
narrative production of the plan. Finalizing draft resident and business surveys for review by the 
Comprehensive Plan Committee. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Reviewed revised zoning ordinance draft at 
the monthly planning commission meeting, where the commission recommended that the 
ordinance, with additional revisions, be moved to Council for their consideration. Revised the 
draft according to the planning commission’s comments and delivered copies of the draft 
ordinance and a summary of the significant changes to the borough.  


 Northampton Township—Continued developing a vision for the Holland Village Study plan 
and preparing background data and information. Presented a plan proposal and conducted a 
visioning session with Northampton Planning Commission. Began preparing a proposal for the 
preparation of design guidelines for Northampton Township’s village commercial overlay. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Finalized resident survey and coordinated the 
printing and mailing process with administrative staff. Reviewed demographic trends and 
forecasts, chapter update process, and new issues to be included in the plan update with the 
planning committee. Continued work on updates to the plan.  


 Quakertown Borough—Continued reviewing and revising draft regulations for the proposed 
Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district. Started researching additional design 
requirements that could be incorporated to supplement the use regulations for the district. 


 New Hope Borough—Continued preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land 
development ordinance initially prepared by the borough manager and zoning officer. 
Yardley Borough—Prepared for and conducted a community discussion intended to identify 
key issues of importance to borough residents and business owners. 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 
 Continued development of a mixed-use development study, which will include development of 


model ordinance language. 
 Reviewing a short list of potential community indicators by plan principles, which are a pivotal 


component of the comprehensive plan’s Plan Implementation and Plan Monitoring section. 
 Completed review of hyperlinked versions of plan narrative that will be a building block to the 


web version of the plan. 
 Continued work on a research report on Transit Oriented Design. 







10 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 
 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 


proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 
 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 
 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 
 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 
 Completed coordination with a borough representative concerning borough analysis of 


Morrisville block level data. 
 Continued the process of completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report 


regarding fair housing. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
  9 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
  2 Sketch Plans 
  13 Municipals 
  2 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 
 Conducting research relative to Compressed Natural Gas fueling stations. 
 Completed Final Progress Report and Final Financial Report and submitted to EPA in order to 


close out EPA food composting grant. 
 Provided General Services with Landscape Conservation Plan information, overview and 


research conducted in order to assist with MS4 compliance and future planning efforts. 
 Researched municipalities that have implemented green practices and energy conservation 


measures. 
 Identified municipalities located within PECO’s service area. 
 Provide input regarding Direct Technical Assistance for Municipal Energy Management 


Program. 
 Reviewed Alternative Energy Ordinance Working Group Framework documents. 


 
Natural Resources Planning 
 Attended riparian buffer workshop at Aldie Mansion regarding the survey work done by the 


Heritage Conservancy. 
 
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Planning 
 Attended informational grant solicitation workshops held on August 29th at Pennsbury Manor 


for interested applicants to the Delaware Estuary CZM grant program. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







11 
 


Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 
 Prepared resolution request and summary report for County Commissioners to adopt the 


Poquessing Watershed SWM Plan and the Perkiomen Headwaters SWM Plan.   
 Drafted letter to all municipalities providing guidance on the stormwater management ordinance 


requirement in the NPDES renewal permit Notice of Intent (NOI) due in September 2012. 
 Worked with GIS to provide General Services and Gilmore Associates county-owned parcel 


acreage in the sub-basins of Neshaminy Creek watershed which have TMDL sediment reduction 
assignments for the County’s MS4 NPDES permit. 


 Provided guidance for municipal plan reviews on stormwater management best practices. 
 


Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan 
 Completed the Parks, Recreation and Open Space section and updating of open space parcel 


information. 
 Submitted completed environmental sections to community planning for review. 
 
Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 
 Began researching existing plans, studies and reports related to natural resources, water 


resources, water supply, wastewater, and stormwater sections. 
 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 
 Began 6 month update to the County’s master parcel file.  
 Submitted project scope of work and budget file to DVRPC relative to their Regional Trails 


grant for the Upper Neshaminy Creek Greenway trail feasibility study. 
 Submitted proposal to West Rockhill Township for East Branch Perkiomen Creek trail 


feasibility study. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 
 Prepared for and conducted HHW and electronic events. 
 Working with the other four regional County Recycling Coordinators on the bidding process for 


the 2013-2016 HHW contracts 
 Assisting municipalities with their 904 performance grant applications. 
 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 
General Transportation Planning 
 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 


developing base mapping information. 
 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland 


Study. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Participated in visioning session 
with township planning commission. Attended in-house meetings to discuss status of project. 


 Reviewed Bensalem Greenway Draft Report. 
 Reviewed New Hope Borough Street Classifications for Subdivision and Land Development 


Ordinance Update Project. 
 Attended Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan Project Kick-off Meeting. Began developing 


street classifications for borough. 
   
 
 







12 
 


Public Transportation 
 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 
 Performed site visit with TMA Bucks Staff at Yardley, Trevose and Neshaminy Falls Stations for 


SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study. 
 Performed site visit with TMA Bucks Staff at Neshaminy Mall for Neshaminy Mall Transit 


Center Enhancement Study. 
 Received and reviewed SEPTA FY 2013 Capital Budget/Capital Program. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 
 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 Attended Review/Design Meetings. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 
 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 


agencies. 
 Attended Interstate 95/Pennsylvania Turnpike Project Meeting with staff from Pennsylvania 


Turnpike Commission and Senator Casey’s office. 
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  
 Reviewed Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Regional Rankings. 
 Participated in teleconference for Household Travel Survey Project. 
 Attended DVRPC Work Program Meeting. 
 





















































































































































































































































































































































































		Agenda

		Meeting Minutes: August 1, 2012

		Executive Director's Report

		2012 Grange Survey Results



		Staff Report

		Municipal Reviews

		Sudivision and Land Development Reviews

		Planning Module Reviews






BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, October 3, 2012 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of September 5, 2012 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman‘s Report 


- Executive Director‘s Report 


- Municipal Economic Development Initiative Update 


- Route 202 Parkway Update 
 


4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 
 


5. Old Business 
 


6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 


 


 
  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


Minutes of Meeting 
September 5, 2012 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin Hoffman; Ed 


Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
Walter Wydro 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Lynn T. Bush; David P. Johnson; Timothy A. Koehler; Charles T. 
McIlhinney; Margaret A. McKevitt; Michael A. Roedig; Lisa M. Wolff 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. with a moment of silence 


and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF AUGUST 1, 2012:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Mr. Nyman, with the vote being 7-0 the minutes of 


the August 1, 2012 meeting were approved. Mr. Hoffman abstained from vote. 
 


INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 Chairman’s Report 


There was no Chairman‘s Report. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush reported that the results of the grange fair participants‘ survey were mailed to the 
board in their packets (Attachment A). Mr. Hoffman asked if other venues such as the recycling 
events could be considered for future surveys. 
 


 Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
Ms. Bush distributed a handout on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
(Attachment B) and explained how the program evolved from the Commissioner‘s Economic 
Development Council. Ms. Bush reported that Commissioner Rob Loughery introduced the 
program at the Grange Fair and has been circulating information about the program at 
municipal events he attends. Ms. Bush explained that the county Public Information 
Department prepared and issued a press release on the program. Ms. Bush stated there have 
been positive responses from two municipalities, Yardley and Bristol boroughs.  
 
Ms. Lisa Wolff provided information on staff‘s meeting with Yardley and displayed an aerial and 
land use map of the borough. Ms. Bush explained that Yardley has many assets including access 
to regional highways, a transit station, the river and canal, Lake Afton, as well as the historic 
downtown. Ms. Bush stated that borough expressed some concern about parking, which would 
be an area staff can provide assistance. Mr. Koehler added that the meeting was well attended by 
supportive citizens and government officials of Yardley. 
 
Ms. Bush presented information on her meeting with Bristol Borough‘s Economic Strategic 
Development Committee. Ms. Bush stated that the committee is collecting data, identifying their 
assets, and seeking assistance from other successful communities. The Borough has scheduled 
the Mayor from Collingswood, New Jersey to address their group in October. Ms. Bush stated 
that we will assist the borough in data collection, research funding opportunities, review 
ordinances, and identify their assets. 







4 


 


 
Ms. Bush polled members for their input regarding Yardley Borough and the Municipal 
Economic Development Initiative. 
 
Mr. Kisselback stated that Yardley would benefit from branding themselves as a destination and 
that the golf course is a part of their community and should be used as a tool to help 
merchandise the area. Mr. Wydro stated that the 100-year floodplain affects the type of 
structures that would be permitted in areas of Yardley and the frequent flooding is a competing 
issue for folks. Mr. Hoffman stated that it might be beneficial to promote Yardley across the 
river in New Jersey as well as possibly providing a shuttle service to the park and ride at the 
Scutter Falls Bridge. 
 
Discussion focused on disseminating information about the Municipal Economic Development 
Initiative program. Mr. Pellegrino suggested presenting it to the Bucks County Association of 
Township Officials and the Bucks County Consortium. Ms. Bush stated that the County 
Commissioners will be speaking at a ―State of the County‖ event at the Central Bucks Chamber 
of Commerce in October. Mr. Pellegrino also suggested including the Yardley Borough 
presentation as an example when presenting the Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
program. Mr. Kisselback stated that the Bucks County Conference and Visitors Bureau can 
assist in developing a promotional platform for the program. Mr. Goodnoe stated that he is very 
happy to see the Bucks County Planning Commission taking on this initiative and that this 
program will benefit all Bucks County municipalities. Discussion focused on how the planning 
commission can help municipalities attain their goals. Mr. Pellegrino suggested surveying the 
municipalities to determine their interest in the program. 


 
ACTION ITEMS 
 Act 247 Reviews 


The reviews of September 5, 2012, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the 
meeting. Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board unanimously 
approved the September 5, 2012 Act 247 reviews. 
 


NEW BUSINESS 
Mr. Cullen asked about the potential sale of the Lower Bucks Hospital and how it relates to the 
redevelopment area plan process endorsed by the Bucks County Planning Commission at the 
May 2011 meeting. Discussion focused on whether or not the new owner would acquire the 
remaining debt and if the commission could be provided with an update on the progress of the 
potential sale. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: Upon motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Cullen, the meeting adjourned at 


3:00 P.M. 
 
Submitted by:  
Margie McKevitt 
Staff Secretary 


  











5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


September 2012 
 


 
Progress on the Municipal Economic Development Initiative 
 


 Letters are going out to all municipalities 


 Meetings held with:  
 


- New Britain Borough 


- Newtown Economic Development Committee 


- Department of Community and Economic Development director – SE Pennsylvania 


- Buckingham Township 


- Commissioners‘ Economic Development Council 
 


Regional Infrastructure Project 
Economy League of Greater Philadelphia and Urban Land Institute 
I was appointed to a committee to take on the challenge of maintaining our regional infrastructure, 
recognizing that roads, bridges, water, wastewater, and public transportation systems are aging and 
in need of repair during a period when there are few resources to make needed upgrades or even 
keep infrastructure in a state of good repair.  
 
There are many businesses represented, but very few government representatives. Bucks is the only 
county represented on the committee. 
 
Employment Numbers for Bucks County 
We were given a list of about 49,000 employers in Bucks County and asked by the regional planning 
commission to verify that this was correct. Several of us spent many days going through the list, and 
our conclusion was that there is no reliably good list of employers and the number of people they 
employ. We could only check the top 800 or so employers, which yielded an estimate of 293,000 
jobs in Bucks County. These estimates showed about 2.1 million jobs in the five-county area, with 
Philadelphia having the most and then Montgomery County, at 542,000 jobs. 
 
Bucks County Community College Business Department 
I am on an advisory committee for the Business Department at BCCC. We met to discuss new 
courses and cooperative programs (working and studying) that the department is offering, focusing 
on small business skills. There are several local businesses represented on the advisory committee. 
 
 
  







6 


 


  







7 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


September 2012 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Attended work session with core planning group 
and reviewed the natural environment and natural systems chapter and discussed sustainability 
principles. Continued preparation of remaining chapters related to the comprehensive plan. 


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted workshop for the planning and 
facilitation of the upcoming Community (Town Hall) Meeting in October.  Continued initial 
data collection and draft narrative production of the plan. Finalized draft resident and business 
surveys for review by the Comprehensive Plan Committee. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Borough is moving forward with the 
adoption process. 


 Northampton Township—Continued developing a vision for the Holland Village Study plan 
and preparing background data and information. Submitted the final business survey to the 
Township. Began development of a market report. Continued preparing a proposal for the 
preparation of design guidelines for Northampton Township‘s village commercial overlay. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—More than 800 resident surveys were returned 
and the compilation process of responses was started. Attended planning committee meeting to 
review the introduction chapter, draft land use data and map, and energy conservation 
information. Continued preparation of draft chapters for the plan update.  


 Quakertown Borough—Continued revising draft regulations for the proposed Pedestrian-
Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district. Continued to research additional design requirements that 
could be incorporated to supplement the use regulations for the district. 


 New Hope Borough—Continued preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land 
development ordinance initially prepared by the borough manager and zoning officer, 
particularly those involving stormwater management and landscaping. 


 Newtown Area Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance—Continued review of inconsistencies in 
the Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance between district and Table of Use regulations. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Continued development of updated land use mapping and statistics. 


 Continued development of a short list of potential community indicators by plan principles, 
which are a pivotal component of the comprehensive plan‘s Implementation and Plan 
Monitoring section. 


 Continued work on a research report on Transit Oriented Design. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 







8 


 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Reviewed and commented on DVRPC 2010 Employment Estimates and 2040 Employment 
Forecasts. 


 Continued the process of completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report 
regarding fair housing. 


 Attended a session on ‗Maximizing the Potential of Downtown Retail Districts‘ as part of 
DVRPC‘s Strategies for Older Suburbs Roundtable. The session consisted of presentations that 
identified building blocks of successful downtown retail districts, key criteria that retailers are 
looking for, and the importance of having a parking strategy for downtown retail districts. 
Presentations were followed by a roundtable discussion where participants asked questions to 
the speakers and others in attendance. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 11 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 2 Sketch Plans 


 10 Municipals 


 1 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Completed research relative to Compressed Natural Gas fueling stations. 


 Attended Direct Technical Assistance conference call to discuss municipalities having expressed 
interest in the program, their needs and those municipalities best-suited to enroll in the program. 


 
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Planning 


 Began researching grant proposal to submit for the FY2013 CZM grant program. 


 Began assessing work program for the Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction Plan (FY2012 
CZM-funded project). 


 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Provided recommendations to update New Hope Borough‘s SALDO stormwater management 
section. 


 Provided guidance for municipal plan reviews on stormwater management best practices. 
 
Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan 


 Submitted revised Energy section to community planning for review. 
 
Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 


 Continue research of existing plans, studies and reports related to natural resources, water 
resources, and began to formulate narrative.  


 Continued research of existing plans, studies and reports related to natural resources, water 
resources, water supply, wastewater, and stormwater sections. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Completed update to the County‘s master parcel file for 2011 and the first six months of 2012. 







9 


 


 Submitted project scope of work and budget file to Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 
Protection (DEP) relative to the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek grant for the Upper 
Neshaminy Creek Greenway trail feasibility study. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Prepared for final electronic event to be held September 29th at The Almshouse. 


 Attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting for the Household Hazardous Waste/Electronic 2013-
2017 Program. 


 Prepared questions and notified interested parties of the Request for Proposals bid. 


 Attempted scheduling a meeting with DEP to go over Waste Capacity Plan requirements and 
grant availability. 


 Started a guidance document on job duties, contact info, and deadlines regarding recycling 
coordinator‘s position. 


 Assisting municipalities with their DEP Section 904 performance grant applications. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM AND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued 
developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland 
Study. Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Reviewed Business Survey. Began 
developing Study Tasks 1 through 3. 


 Reviewed Neshaminy Creek Crossing Proposals and provided rankings to Pennsylvania 
Environmental Council. 


 Began developing base information for Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan Transportation 
Section. Provided proposed street classifications to borough manager for review and comment. 


 Attended grand opening for county‘s first Public Compressed Natural Gas Station. 


 Attended Eastern Pennsylvania Greenways and Trails Summit. Prepared presentation notes for 
Commissioner Loughery. 


 Attended Bucks County Housing Coalition Meeting. 


 Conducted Bicycle Plan Committee Meeting. Reviewed draft document. 
 
Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued developing base information for SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study. 


 Contacted DVRPC staff regarding Neshaminy Mall Transit Center Enhancement Study. 


 Attended Job Access Reverse Commute Committee Meeting. 


 Attended SEPTA‘s City/County Coordination Meeting. 
 
  







10 


 


Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and 
agencies. 


 Attended Route 13 Technical Advisory Committee Meeting. 
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Attended Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Committee Meeting. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Continued project management support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Continued field verification and identification of 911 common area sites in the county. 


 Continued development of Emergency Operations Center Common Operational Picture web 
service. 


 Continued development of Bucks County Election Polling place web viewer application. 


 Continued development of Public Safety Damage Assessment mobile GIS application. 


 Demonstrated capabilities and uses of GIS system to county officials at the EOC. 


 Attended ESRI webinar on GIS web viewer development 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Environmental and Preservation units. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 
































































































































































































































































































































BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


Wednesday, November 7, 2012 
2:00 P.M. 


Pennsbury Manor 


400 Pennsbury Memorial Road 
Morrisville, PA 19067 


AGENDA 


1. Pledge of Allegiance


2. Approval of Minutes for Meeting of October 3, 2012


3. Information Items


- Chairman’s Report


- Executive Director’s Report


4. Pennsbury Manor Presentation


5. Action Items


- Act 247 Reviews


6. Old Business


7. New Business


8. Public Comment and Press Questions


9. Adjournment


Please remember to contact us at 
215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 







2 


PENNSBURY MANOR 
400 Pennsbury Memorial Road 
Morrisville, PA 19067 







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 


October 3, 2012 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; James J. Dowling; Darrin M. Hoffman; Ed Kisselback, Jr.; 


David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 


STAFF PRESENT: 
 
 


Charles T. McIlhinney; Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. Johnson; 
Donna W. Byers; Maureen Wheatley; Dennis P. Livrone; Richard G. Brahler, Jr. 


GUESTS: Chris Stanford, P.E. PMP 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence and the 


pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2012:  
 Upon motion of Mr. Cullen, seconded by Ms. Pierce, with the vote being 7-1 the minutes of the 


September 5, 2012 meeting were approved. Mr. Dowling abstained as he was not present. 
 


INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 Chairman’s Report 


Mr. Kisselback reminded the board the next BCPC meeting will be held at Pennsbury Manor. A tour of 
the Manor will follow the meeting. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush stated the county continues its efforts to introduce the new Municipal Economic Development 
Initiative and that Yardley Borough is the first municipality to join the program. Ms. Bush reported on 
meetings held with New Britain Borough, the Newtown Economic Development Committee, the 
Department of Community and Economic Development director for Southeastern Pennsylvania, the 
Commissioners Economic Development Council, and a preliminary meeting with Buckingham 
Township. Letters are going out to all Bucks County municipalities.  
 
Ms. Bush said she was appointed to a committee to represent Bucks County on the Regional 
Infrastructure Project organized by the Economy League of Greater Philadelphia and Urban Land 
Institute. The charge of the committee is to figure out what to do about funding infrastructure at a time 
with few resources to make necessary upgrades or repairs. Ms. Bush stated at the end of nine months the 
committee will have some options for funding. 
 
Ms. Bush reported that the regional planning commission provided the BCPC with a list of 49,000 
employers to verify employment numbers. Having gone through the list, the BCPC concluded there was 
no good reliable list of employers and the number of people they employed in Bucks County. The BCPC 
surrendered to an assessment of 293,000 jobs in Bucks County. Mr. Pellegrino said Bucks County 
employers may be required to electronically file the number of employees with the Tax Collection 
Committee of Bucks County and suggested the committee may be a possible source for a more accurate 
number of people employed in Bucks County. Mr. Pellegrino said he will check with the committee. 
 
Ms. Bush stated that due to layoffs in Bucks County the BCPC has lost three staff people – Alice 
Lambert, Planner and major contributor to the comprehensive planning process and stormwater 
management; Christina Diaz, GIS technician who worked in GIS mapping and was working on the 
difficult task of mapping ambulance routing; and Allison Hamilton, the assistant for the Land 
Preservation Program who was responsible for monitoring and reviewing reports on all easements the 
county has acquired. Mr. Pellegrino asked if layoffs were made by least seniority; Ms. Bush answered yes. 
 







4 


 


 Route 202 Parkway Update 
Presenter Chris Sanford, P.E., PMP for Michael Baker, Jr., Inc. 
Chris Sanford, project manager for the U.S. 202 Parkway, presented to the board on the progress of the 
project. Mr. Sanford stated that the total cost of the parkway is $200 million. The 8.4 mile long parkway, 
located in Lower Gwynedd, Upper Gwynedd, Montgomery, Warrington and Doylestown townships, will 
post a 40 mph speed limit and provide a 5-foot-wide paved shoulder/bike lanes. Mr. Sanford reported on 
each section of the parkway, highlighting costs, bridges, signalized intersections, lane capacity, trailhead 
access, shared use path connections, bicycle lanes, landscaping, berms, future trail connections and 
improvements. Mr. Sanford stated that the existing U.S. 202 will revert back to local road names once the 
parkway opens. The anticipated open date is late fall 2012. Discussion followed on the potential for trail 
connections. Mr. Kisselback thanked Mr. Sanford for his great presentation. A copy of the PowerPoint 
presentation will be made available to the board. 


 
ACTION ITEMS 
 Act 247 Reviews 


The reviews of October 3, 2012 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On 
motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Wydro, the board approved the October 3, 2012 Act 247 
reviews. There were no abstentions. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: Mr. Cullen asked Ms. Bush for an update on the use of vacant space in the Courthouse 
once the Justice Center opens. Ms. Bush responded that the County has hired the Dewberry Design 
Group to assess the space in the Courthouse to be vacated and determine its best uses. Objectives may 
include economizing of leases and potentially selling real estate to consolidate offices into the vacated 
space. While the vacant square footage (nearly 100,000 square feet) may accommodate a consolidation of 
Bucks County offices, exceptions may need to be made with offices that would require security and 
privacy, such as Children and Youth.   


  
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Kisselback asked the board to let him know before next month’s meeting if they are 


interested in serving on the Nominating Committee.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 2:50 PM. 


 
Submitted by:  
Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 


  







5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


October 2012 
 


 
Report on Development Proposals in 2012 – Tim Koehler assembled some data on developments 
proposed so far in 2012. Here are some highlights: 
 


 The number of proposals (216) reviewed so far in 2012 appears to be on a pace to exceed the 
number reviewed in 2011 (235).  


 Proposals for new residential development (506 units) reviewed so far in 2012 appear to be on a pace 
to exceed the number of units proposed in 2011 (588).  


 There have been 271 attached units (townhouses) proposed so far in 2012, accounting for more than 
54% of the units proposed. These units along with multifamily units (71 units) account for 68% of 
the units proposed so far in 2012. In 2011, this number was 81%. 


 There have been 164 single-family detached units proposed so far in 2012, already exceeding the total 
amount single-family detached units (114) proposed in 2011.  


 None of the residential units proposed in 2012 so far have been age-restricted units marking the 
second time since these types of units began to be recorded that there were no age-restricted 
development proposals. 


 Lower Bucks accounts for more than half of the proposed residential development so far in 2012, 
the first time in four years that this region leads in the number of residential proposals. About one-
third of the proposed residential development is located in central Bucks.  


 The amount of nonresidential space (just over 1 million square feet) proposed so far in 2012 appears 
to be on pace to be only half that proposed in 2011 (nearly 2.8 million square feet) and may only 
slightly exceed the amount proposed in 2010.  


 The commercial development proposed so far in 2012 (1/3 of million square feet) is far less than the 
nearly 1.2 million square feet proposed in 2011. Similarly, the institutional development proposed so 
far in 2012 (235,000+ square feet) is far less than the 1.1+ million square feet proposed in 2011. 


 The industrial development proposed so far in 2012 (475,000+ square feet) already exceeds the total 
amount in 2011 (nearly 446,000 square feet. 


 Only a small amount of office space (2,350 square feet) has been proposed so far in 2012 compared 
to amount proposed in 2011 (nearly 12,000 square feet).  


 Central Bucks accounted for the largest portion of proposed nonresidential development (36%), 
followed closely by upper Bucks (34%) and lower Bucks (31%).  


 
Details on the totals will be presented early in 2013 after we complete our analysis for the entire year. 
 
Impact of the Hurricane – The most significant impact of Hurricane Sandy on county operations is on the 
election. We still have many polling places without power. Deadlines for applying for absentee ballots and 
returning absentee ballots have been extended by the state. But this makes the job of our county election 
officials much more complicated to complete in a compressed time frame. 
 
Transportation Grants – New Britain Borough and Chalfont Borough recently received transportation 
grants. Chalfont received $230,000 for three traffic signal improvements on Route 152. Improvements 
include: (1) the installation of Adaptive Signal Control Technology and Closed Circuit Television for two 
traffic signals within 100 yards of each other on North Main Street at the intersections of Sunset Avenue and 
Park Avenue; (2) installation of radar detection system for one traffic signal that can alleviate timing and 
idling issues at Lindenfield Parkway; and (3) adding pedestrian countdown signals for all three traffic signals.  
 
New Britain received $169,600 for traffic flow improvements and pedestrian access improvements at the 
intersection of Tamenend Avenue and Rt. 202. The pedestrian push buttons and crosswalks will increase 
opportunities for walking and bicycling trips to the train station from the nearby residential area and from Rt 







6 


 


202. Funding will provide for construction of an eight to ten foot shared-use path for bicyclists and 
pedestrians between the Tamenend Avenue/SR 202 intersections and the New Britain SEPTA station, 
including modifications of the railroad crossing surface and equipment to safely accommodate the shared-use 
path crossing. 
 
Economic Development Initiative – BCPC Board member Jim Dowling suggested that we put together a 
calendar of events relating to our Economic Development Initiative meetings. I am planning a couple of 
events for board members: 
 


- Training session for staff with a speaker 


- Shared calendar of all our meetings on economic development that board members can attend if 
you wish. 
 


Several events have been cancelled due to the storm this week. 
 
Some Highlights on other work –  
 
Solebury Township residents are setting a record by responding in huge numbers to the resident survey we 
prepared in conjunction with their comprehensive plan update. About 41 percent of the households returned 
surveys, which has kept our staff really busy in tabulating and analyzing survey results. 
 
Perkasie Borough Town Hall Meeting went well. We got some good responses from attendees on their ideas 
and preferences on the future of Perkasie. 
  







7 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
October 2012 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued working on the preparation of draft chapters 
related to the comprehensive plan. Prepared adjusted population figures for surrounding communities 
based on census block analysis to use in the plan update.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted a Community (Town Hall) Meeting of residents, 
business owners, borough officials, and interested parties. The purpose of this meeting was to discuss key 
issues affecting the borough in order to shape a shared future community vision. Continued initial data 
collection and draft narrative production of the plan. The resident and business surveys have been 
reviewed by the Comprehensive Plan Committee and will be mailed out. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—Borough continues to move forward with adoption. 


 Northampton Township—Began draft production for the Holland Village Study plan. Continued 
development of a market report. Met with the township planning commission to discuss a Town Hall 
meeting of residents, business owners, township officials, and interested parties. Prepared for the Town 
Hall meeting. Completed a draft proposal for the preparation of design guidelines for Northampton 
Township’s village commercial overlay. Currently being reviewed by the Executive Director. 


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Entered data from approximately one-half of the 1,700-
plus resident surveys that were returned. Attended a planning committee meeting to review the Park, 
Recreation and Open Space Chapter update. Continued preparation of draft chapters for the plan update.  


 Quakertown Borough—Met with borough officials to discuss revised draft regulations for the 
proposed Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district. Began incorporating suggested changes to the 
overlay district language and various ordinance sections based on officials’ input from the meeting.  


 New Hope Borough—Continued preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land development 
ordinance initially prepared by the borough manager and zoning officer, particularly those sections 
involving stormwater management and landscaping.  


> Newtown Area Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance—Continued review of Joint Municipal Zoning 
Ordinance regarding inconsistencies between the district regulations and the Table of Use Regulations. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Completed development of updated land use mapping and continued preparation of associated statistics. 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. 
 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Continued completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report regarding fair housing. 


 Attended the Dublin Borough Revitalization & Visioning Task Force Plan meeting. The goal of the plan 
is to provide a clear vision for sustained community and economic development. 


 Prepared courtesy review of Durham’s proposed Resource and Agricultural Protection zoning district. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 16 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Sketch Plans 







8 


 


 5 Municipals 


 1 Sewage Facility Planning Modules  


 1 Transportation Impact Study 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Researched potential grant for CNG vehicles for County vehicle fleet. 
 
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Planning 


 Assessed work program for development of the Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction Plan (FY2012 
CZM-funded project). 


 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Provided guidance on municipal and public inquiries regarding stormwater management.  


 Forwarded County-adoption resolutions to PEC and PWD for Pennypack and Poquessing Watershed 
Act 167 plans. 


 
Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 


 Submitted draft narratives of natural resources, water supply and infrastructure, wastewater facilities, and 
stormwater management sections. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Researched various trail feasibility studies as part of identifying components to be included in the Mill 
(Otter) – Queen Anne and Upper Neshaminy Creek Greenway trail feasibility studies. 


 Submitted resolution requests for the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek and Upper Neshaminy Creek 
Greenway trail feasibility studies which were approved at the October 17 commissioners’ meeting. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Preparing final reports for electronic and hazardous waste events. 


 Reviewed RFP submissions for the HHW/Electronic 2013-2017 Program. 


 Prepared replies to questions from notified interested parties of the RFP bid. 


 Attended meeting with DEP to go over Waste Capacity Plan requirements and grant availability. 


 Preparing a work plan, timeline, and a 901 grant application for the county’s waste capacity plan. 
 


GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM AND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 


General Transportation Planning 


 Continued composing Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report and developing base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland Study. 
Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Attended meeting with township planning 
commission to discuss upcoming Town Hall Meeting. Continued developing Study Tasks 1 through 3. 
Received and reviewed traffic modeling information from township traffic engineer. Assisted in 
development of announcement flyer for town hall meeting. 


 Continued developing base information and composing of the Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 
Transportation Section. Coordinated with borough engineer for proposed street classifications.  


 Attended consultant selection meeting for Neshaminy Creek Crossing Project. 


 Attended Regional Bicycle Committee Meeting. Provided Bike Plan segment information to PennDOT. 


 Conducted Bicycle Plan Committee Meeting. Attended meeting with County Commissioners to discuss 
Bicycle Plan. Coordinated public meeting on November 8th at Bucks County Community College. 


 Attended Bucks County Incident Management Committee Meeting. 







9 


 


Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued developing base information for SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study. 


 Attended TMA Bucks Board Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 


 Coordinated consultant presentation on U.S. Route 202 Parkway Project for BCPC Board Meeting. 


 Attended Galloway Road Extension Project Meeting. 
 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC FY 2014 Work Program Meeting. 


 Developed work program for Phase II of SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study.  


 Attended meeting of the Pennsylvania Subcommittee to develop list of Transit Support Program FY 
2014 Special Studies. Submitted special studies list to DVRPC for approval. 


 Submitted FY 2014 Transit Support Program Core Work Program to DVRPC. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Continued project management support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Continued field verification and identification of 911 common area sites throughout the county. 


 Continued development of EOC Common Operational Picture web service. 


 Attended ESRI webinar on Working with Imagery at ArcGIS 10.1, Hosted Map Services with ArcGIS 
Online, and GIS in Local Government. 


 Coordinated upgrade of county GIS Enterprise hardware, software, and applications with GeographIT. 
 


GIS Map Production 


 Produced presentation maps for Environmental and Preservation units. 
 


GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 




































































































































































































































































































BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
 


Wednesday, December 5, 2012 
2:00 P.M. 


 
 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 
 
 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of November 7, 2012 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman’s Report 


- Executive Director’s Report 
 


4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 


- Bucks County Bicycle Plan 
      BCPC Staff and Members of the Bicycle Task Force 


- 2013 Board Meeting Schedule 


- Report from Nominating Committee 
 


5. Old Business 
 


6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 
 
 


Please remember to contact us at 
215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 


 
AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 


  







2 


 


  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Minutes of Meeting 
November 7, 2012 


 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James J. Dowling, Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol 


A. Pierce; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: Lynn T. Bush; Timothy A. Koehler; David P. Johnson; Margaret A. McKevit 
 


 
Mr. Douglas Miller, Director of Pennsbury Manor provided a brief background of Pennsbury Manor and its 
property including the most recent addition of the Visitors Center in 1996. Mr. Miller explained that 
approximately 15,000 to 20,000 school-aged children visit each year. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M. with a moment of silence and the 


pledge of allegiance. 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 3, 2012: Upon motion of Mr. Dowling, 
seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board unanimously approved the minutes of the October 3, 2012. 


 
INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 


 
 Chairman’s Report 


Mr. Kisselback reported that the nominating committee for 2013 officers of the Board will be Ms. Pierce, Mr. 
Goodnoe, and Mr. Cullen. Mr. Kisselback stated that he will not be seeking a third term as Chairman of the 
Board. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
Ms. Bush discussed development proposal activity in Bucks County for 2012. Ms. Bush stated that staff 
prepared 216 reviews so far in 2012 which means we may exceed the number reviewed in 2011 of 235. Mr. 
Dowling stated that the Habitat for Humanity is finding it difficult to build homes because of the price of 
land. 
 
Ms. Bush discussed the effects Hurricane Sandy had on the recent election. Ms. Bush stated that as of Friday 
before the election 40 polling places were without power. Ms. Bush stated that our municipal connections 
were useful during this time. Ms. Bush advised that only one polling place had to be relocated, Riegelsville 
Borough. Subsequently there were no power issues reported during the election. Ms. Bush stated that Carol 
Aichele, Pennsylvania’s Chief Election Official, visited her polling place in Doylestown Borough during the 
election. 
 
Ms. Bush advised that New Britain ($169,600) and Chalfont ($230,000) boroughs recently received 
transportation grants. Also, Pennsylvania Route 202 opening will be delayed due to the landscaping that is still 
in progress. 
 
Ms. Bush advised that the county will receive $530,000 from the state as part of the Marcellus Shale Impact 
fee distribution. Distribution for the southeastern Pennsylvania counties is based on population. Funds can 
be used for greenways, parks and recreation, open space, and trails. Ms. Bush also advised that the county will 
be receiving $880,000 for funding road and bridge improvements. Ms. Bush stated that the funding must be 
used in accordance with a county plan. Mr. Johnson stated that there are 115 county bridges, 50 are classified 
as structurally deficient, and inspections are conducted annually by a consultant. 
 
Ms. Bush introduced an idea to host a workshop for the planning commission staff and board on the 
county’s municipal economic development initiative. Ms. Bush stated that the keynote speaker would be 
Stephen Barth, consultant hired to assist Hatboro Borough, Montgomery County with its main street efforts. 







4 


 


Ms. Bush stated that she would like it to be in December. The board agreed to schedule it before their 
December 5 regular meeting.  
 
Mr. Goodnoe asked what role the planning commission has in the county’s municipal economic development 
initiative. Ms. Bush stated that we are to use our resources to help municipalities decide what they should and 
should not be doing to assist in accomplishing their goals. She stated our job is to look at their plans, 
ordinances, policies and practices and help them get to where they want to be. Discussion focused on who or 
which county agency companies should contact when they want to locate in Bucks County. Ms. Bush stated 
that the county has not designated a single point of contact. Mr. Kisselback stated that he would like the 
planning commission to continue its’ participation in the county’s Economic Development Council. Ms. 
Pierce asked if Mr. Barth could provide information on other communities success stories (i.e., Bryn Mawr). 
Mr. Kisselback also would like to have a joint meeting with other surrounding county planning commissions. 
 
 
ACTION ITEMS 


 Act 247 Reviews 
The reviews of November 7, 2012, were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. On motion 
of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board unanimously approved the November 7, 2012 Act 247 
reviews. 
 


NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Kisselback stated that prior to the next meeting will be the annual holiday party at 1:00 P.M. 
He advised staff to invite the Commissioners and Row Office officials. 


 
At this point, the board was provided with an historic overview of Pennsbury Manor and given information 
about the many programs and events held throughout the year. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting adjourned at 3:07 PM. 


 
Submitted by:  
Margaret A. McKevitt 
Staff Secretary 


  







5 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Executive Director’s Report 


November 2012 
 


 
Meeting with Montgomery County Planning Commission - As a follow-up to our last BCPC meeting, I 
spoke with the chairman of the Montgomery County Planning Commission and with the acting executive 
director. The chairman is Marc Jonas, a lawyer with Eastburn and Gray in Doylestown. He was very 
enthusiastic about meeting with BCPC board. They meet the second Wednesday of every month from 9:00 
am to noon and then have lunch. We could join them toward the end of their meeting. Alternatively, we 
could meet somewhere at the county border (Montgomeryville, Horsham) at a mutually convenient time. We 
should discuss so I can report back to them on your preferences. 
 
Route 202 Parkway opening – The Parkway will open on December 3 with a ribbon cutting at 2:00 pm. 
The process that was used to design the parkway redefined transportation planning in Bucks County and the 
state. A task force representing all the townships and boroughs in the 202 corridor met for an intensive 
workshop, working on maps and aerial photos of the corridor which stretched across the Montgomery 
Township municipal meeting room.  
 


 At regular meetings of this task force, the group designed a parkway that met the constraints of a $200 
million price tag and the transportation needs that could only be met by a limited access roadway.  


 From Bucks County, elected officials from Warrington, Doylestown Township, Doylestown Borough, 
Chalfont Borough, New Britain Borough, Buckingham Township, Solebury Township, and New Hope 
Borough and the county met monthly during a one-year period to discuss every aspect of the parkway 
design.  


 This included what types of intersections should be provided (roundabouts, lights, or overpasses), the 
bike lanes, the multi-use path, landscaping, sound walls, and so forth. There was an unprecedented 
amount of public participation in details that used to be left to transportation engineers.  


 The result is a new road – something we have not seen in Bucks County for decades and something that 
we will not see statewide for a long time as we focus all of our transportation dollars on fixing the roads 
and bridges we have. 


 We expect that the diversion of cars and trucks from the center of Chalfont Borough and New Britain 
Borough will help those towns turn their main thoroughfare into a ―Main Street.‖ 


 We know that the multi-use path, which has already attracted many users, will be a key element in Bucks 
County’s plans for paths, trails, and greenways.  The County and several of our municipalities 
(Doylestown Township, Chalfont, and New Britain Borough) have already received grants to plan and 
build trails to connect this new facility to other trails in the area. 


 
Delaware Valley College Meeting on future of farming- I met with Dean Russell Redding of Delaware 
Valley College. He used to be Pennsylvania’s Secretary of Agriculture. I asked him what he and the college 
faculty see as trends affecting agriculture in the future. He said that productive uses of land will continue to 
evolve, beyond what we see today. We are aware of some of the ―agri-business‖ activities such as pick-your-
own crops and seasonal festivals. We have also seen the rise in the number of wineries. Trends they see at the 
college include more greenhouses, farm-to-table enterprises, hydroponics, and more intense farming on 
smaller plots of land. There are some newcomers to farming in Bucks County, including people who are 
embracing a second career in agriculture and who are looking at innovative approaches.  
 
The purpose of my investigation is to make sure that municipalities that regulate farming activities are aware 
that the future will include more than crop farming. 
 
Grant Received – We received a $40,000 grant from Department of Conservation and Natural Resources 
for a trail feasibility study along the Neshaminy Creek, from the Forks of the Neshaminy into Core Creek 
area. This will be added to another grant to do the same thing along the Neshaminy from the Forks 
northward to the Doylestown Township trail by Central Park.  







6 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


November 2012 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 


 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance—Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham Township, 
Sellersville Borough, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan—Continued working on draft chapters related to the 
comprehensive plan. Provided a copy of adjusted population figures to Langhorne Manor Borough and 
Middletown Township for review and comment.  


 Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan—Conducted a meeting with the Borough’s Comprehensive 
Plan Committee to discuss the Regional Location & History, Population & Demographic Trends, Land 
Use Characteristics and Development Trends, and Housing Trends sections of the plan. Solicited 
comments and questions from the committee and public attendees. Continued data collection and draft 
narrative production of the plan.  


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update—The borough continues to move forward with the 
adoption process. 


 Northampton Township—Continued draft production for the Holland Village Study plan. Continued 
development of a market report. Completed a draft proposal for the preparation of design guidelines for 
Northampton Township’s village commercial overlay. Currently it is being reviewed by the Executive 
Director.  


 Solebury Township Comprehensive Plan—Compiled data from more than 1,700 resident surveys and 
began preparation of a presentation of results and findings in PowerPoint format. Continued preparation 
of draft chapters for the plan update.  


 Quakertown Borough—Met with borough officials for the second time to discuss the revised draft 
regulations for the proposed Pedestrian-Oriented, Mixed-Use Overlay district. Discussed several changes 
made to the overlay district language and various ordinance sections based on officials’ input from the 
first meeting. Prepared a revised draft with suggested changes and submitted it to Borough officials for 
their review. 


 New Hope Borough—Continued preparing revisions to a draft subdivision and land development 
ordinance initially prepared by the borough manager and zoning officer, particularly those sections 
involving stormwater management and landscaping. 


 Newtown Area Joint Municipal Zoning Ordinance—Continued review of the Joint Municipal 
Zoning Ordinance regarding inconsistencies between the district regulations and the Table of Use 
Regulations. 


 Sellersville Borough—Attended a joint work meeting of Borough Council and the Planning 
Commission to hear a proposal for rezoning and land development by W.B Homes to rezone a 6.5-acre 
parcel from I Industrial district to MR Medium Density Residential to permit 64 townhouses. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Completed development of updated land use mapping and continued preparation of associated statistics. 


 Continued work on research and writing of a report on Transit Oriented Design. 
 
Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations. 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 







7 


 


 Continued the process of completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report regarding fair 
housing. 


 Responded to questions from Morrisville Borough Planning Commission regarding recommended 
changes to the borough’s zoning ordinance related to fair housing. 


 Prepared a courtesy review of Durham Township’s proposed Resource and Agricultural Protection 
zoning district. 


 
Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 
11 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 
8 Municipals 
3 Sewage Facility Planning Modules 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 
Coastal Zone Management (CZM) Planning 


 Continued assessment of work program for development of the Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction 
Municipal Implementation Plan (FY2012 CZM-funded project). 


 Inquired how to acquire copies of MS4 permit renewal forms to assist with development of Neshaminy 
Creek Sediment Reduction Municipal Implementation Plan CZM grant project. 


 Review and ranked Delaware Estuary Coastal Zone grant applications and attended DECZ Steering 
Committee meeting at DVRPC. 


 
Water Resources Planning 


 Attended annual planning meeting of the Watershed Congress on the Schuylkill. 
 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Reviewed FEMA flood map and policy information and provided assistance regarding municipal 
inquiries. 


 Prepared draft RFP for Neshaminy Creek Sediment Reduction Municipal Implementation CZM grant. 


 Responded to municipal engineer’s inquiries regarding stormwater management.  
 
Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan 


 Revised draft narratives of natural resources, water supply and infrastructure, wastewater facilities, and 
stormwater management sections based on initial internal review. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Continued researching examples of trail feasibility studies as part of identifying components to include in 
the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek and Upper Neshaminy Creek Greenway trail feasibility studies. 


 Submitted and received resolution requests for the Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek and Upper 
Neshaminy Creek Greenway trail feasibility studies which were approved at the October 17 
commissioners’ meeting. 


 Received notification of grant award in the amount of $40,000 from PA DCNR for the Middle 
Neshaminy Creek Trail Feasibility Study. 


 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Prepared for and attended quarterly meeting of the Bucks County Solid Waste Advisory Committee. 


 Preparing final reports for electronic and household hazardous waste (HHW) events. 


 Reviewed RFP submissions for the HHW/Electronic 2013-2017 Program. 


 Scheduling a follow-up meeting with DEP to go over Waste Capacity Plan requirements and grant 
availability. 


 Implementing a work plan, timeline, and a 901 grant application for the county’s waste capacity plan. 


 Worked on HHW events sites selection for 2013. 







8 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 
General Transportation Planning  


 Continued composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. Continued developing 
base mapping information. 


 Continued developing base information for transportation section of Northampton/Holland Study. 
Continued developing digitally enhanced photographs. Continued developing Study Tasks 1 through 3. 
Attended meeting to discuss information for rescheduled town hall meeting. 


 Continued developing base information for Perkasie Borough Comprehensive Plan Transportation 
Section. Continued composing Transportation Section. Coordinated with borough engineer for proposed 
street classifications. Conducted site visit and inventoried all parking related facilities. 


 Developed presentation boards for Bicycle Plan Public Meeting. Conducted Bicycle Plan Public Meeting.  


 Attended County Bridge Program meeting with PennDOT. 


 Attended County Bridge meeting to discuss proposals received for a bridge in Springfield Township. 
   


Public Transportation 


 Reviewed SEPTA Board Meeting Materials. 


 Continued developing base information for SEPTA Visibility Enhancement Study. Developed work 
program for Phase II of project to analyze Trenton and Warminster Regional Rail Lines. 
 


Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided Transportation Improvement Program information to various individuals and agencies. 


 Attended US Route 13 Project Meeting. 
 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Attended DVRPC Long Range Planning Committee Meeting. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 


 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical support to IT, Board of Assessment, and Emergency Communications. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editing of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Continued project management support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Continued field verification and identification of 911 common area sites throughout the county. 


 Continued development of EOC Common Operational Picture web service. 


 Met with Health Department staff to discuss requirements and development of Mobile Application for 
Well Inspections. 


 Met with GeographIT to discuss Geo-File EMS Block Boundary Maintenance Procedures. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


2013 BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
PROPOSED MEETING SCHEDULE 


 
 


Meetings are proposed to be held on the first Wednesday, 
2:00 P.M. at the Bucks County Planning Commission office in 
the Robert H. Grunmeier Room, 1260 Almshouse Road, 
Doylestown, PA. 


 
January 2 


February 6 
March 6 
April 3 
May 1 
June 5 


 July 3 
August 7 


September 4 
October 2 


November 6 
December 4 


 
 


 









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 


 
 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, February 1, 2012 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of January 4, 2012 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman’s Report 


- Executive Director’s Report 


- Annual Report of Review Activity 


 Presentation by: Mike Roedig 
 


4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 
 
5. Old Business 


 
6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING 
  







2 


 


 
  







3 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


Minutes of Meeting 
January 4, 2012 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; 


Ed Kisselback, Jr.; David R. Nyman; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; 
David H. Platt; Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: Lynn T. Bush; Donna W. Byers; Timothy A. Koehler; Margaret A. 
McKevitt; David A. Sebastian; Maureen Wheatley 
 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM with a moment of silence 


and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 7, 2011: Upon motion of Mr. Wydro, 


seconded by Ms. Pierce, the minutes of the December 7, 2011 meeting were approved. There 
were no abstentions. 
 


INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
 Chairman’s Report 


Mr. Kisselback attended the Commissioners inauguration on January 3rd and said the Bucks 
County Comprehensive Plan was highlighted as one of the top ten 2011 County 
accomplishments. Mr. Kisselback and Mr. Pellegrino acknowledged the staff for this 
accomplishment. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked the board to update and provide the staff secretary with their contact 
information at the close of the meeting. 
 


 Executive Director’s Report 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. On behalf of 
the staff, Ms. Bush thanked the board for the holiday party. Ms. Bush noted that two BCPC 
board member terms have expired. Mr. Platt is completing his reappointment application and 
Mr. Pellegrino has been reappointed by the Commissioners. Ms. Bush said the County 
Commissioners adopted the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan and congratulated the BCPC for a 
job well done. 
 
Ms. Bush attended the annual staff meeting with the SEPTA Capital Program staff.  Upcoming 
improvements include a new simplified fare collection system. The Levittown Train Station is on 
schedule for improvements, and the role of transit in the I-95 reconstruction project is being 
discussed. 
 
Ms. Bush said progress has been made with the Department of Environmental Protection to 
establish reasonable approaches to regulate stormwater for small projects (e.g. patios and shed 
installations). New guidelines for the Neshaminy/Little Neshaminy watersheds are being 
circulated. 
 







4 


 


Ms. Bush and Mr. Nyman attended a meeting regarding the revitalization to downtown Perkasie. 
Ms. Bush said she believes the BCPC staff could be helpful in establishing a direction in efforts 
being made by Perkasie Borough Council, Perkasie Olde Town, and the Pennridge Chamber of 
Commerce to revitalize the downtown area. 
 


 BCPC Meeting Schedule 
Ms. Bush provided the board with the 2012 BCPC meeting schedule. To meet legal 
requirements, the schedule was advertised in December 2011. Following motion of Mr. Nyman, 
seconded by Mr. Wydro the board unanimously agreed to ratify the actions of staff to advertise 
and accept the 2012 BCPC meeting schedule.  


 
 BCPC Board Discussion 


The board was provided with a document titled What Can BCPC Do to “ignite” Economic 
Development in Bucks County? Ms. Bush said all of the Commissioners at the swearing-in ceremony 
yesterday talked about economic development as a goal for 2012. Ms. Bush provided a brief 
background on the Economic Development Advisory Board (EDAB) and the Commissioners’ 
Economic Development Council. The EDAB submitted a report in 2009 that made strong 
recommendations to engage municipal partners. Ms. Bush opened the floor for discussion, 
asking for ideas on how the BCPC can realize this goal with some specific action steps (see 
Attachment A for board generated ideas on this topic). 
 


ACTION ITEMS 
 Act 247 Reviews 


The reviews of January 4, 2012 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
On motion of Mr. Nyman, seconded by Mr. Pellegrino, the board approved the January 4, 2012. 
Act 247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 


 
OLD BUSINESS: Mr. Kisselback requested the report of the nominating committee. On behalf of 


the nominating committee, Mr. Goodnoe made a motion to continue with the current slate of 
officers for 2012: Edward Kisselback as Chairman, David Nyman as Vice Chairman, and Walter 
Wydro as Secretary. Mr. Kisselback asked if there were any nominations from the floor. Having 
no further nominations, the nominations were closed. Mr. Platt seconded the motion to 
continue with the current slate of officers for 2012. 


 
 Mr. Hoffman asked whether the Bylaws allow for more than 1-year terms. Mr. Kisselback 


responded that the guidelines provide for a consecutive term and added that he will not run 
again for the position of chairman following this term. Mr. Goodnoe said the nominating 
committee discussed terms and agreed that a 2-year term would provide continuity. Mr. 
Kisselback polled the board for further questions and a roll call was conducted. The majority 
vote was 9-0 to continue with the current slate of officers. Mr. Kisselback thanked the board for 
their confidence. 


  
NEW BUSINESS: There was no new business. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT AND PRESS QUESTIONS: There were no public comments or press questions. 


 
ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 3:15 PM.  
 


Submitted by: Donna Byers, Staff Secretary 
  







5 


 


Attachment A - January 4, 2011 BCPC Meeting 


What Can BCPC Do to “ignite” Economic Development in Bucks County?  


 


BCPC Board Key Points: 


- Tie to comp plan: SMART growth 


- BCPC Reviews: comments for economic feedback 


- Climate: business/friendly 


- Unified county review (e.g. TEVA) 


- Agency purpose: lack of coordination 


- BCPC information clearinghouse: zoning, infrastructure, etc. 


- Real estate industry: what is available 


- Zoning incentives: eliminate some restrictions 


- Public opposition 


- Developers need to know what to expect 


- User-friendly zoning 


- Traffic concerns 


- Other county success 


- Time to approval 


- Unrealistic developer expectations 


- What is impact? Jobs, taxes, abatement 


- Workforce development 


- Life-style amenities 


- Potential: tourism, etc.- target the market 


- Municipal officials: provide tools to deal with residents/developers 


- Educate officials 


- Road improvements 


- Accessibility to businesses/parking 


- Over-parking in shopping areas 


- Rail access to lands for development: unused rails 


- BCPC establish an open door 


- Chambers of commerce and smaller chambers of commerce/local groups 


- Webpage for economic development (people do not call) 


Checklist land, labor, type of business, income 


- What do areas offer and what are the attributes (river, roads, workforce) 


- Look at success of competitors (why are they successful) 


  







6 


 


 


  







7 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 
January 2012 


 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 
Township, Sellersville Borough, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Attended Planning Commission meeting to 
discuss details and arrangements for the Borough’s town hall meeting and developed a draft 
outline for interactive work stations to facilitate the public input process. Continued preparation 
of chapters related to demographic, land use, and development trends, historic resources, natural 
resources, and goals and objectives.  


 Perkasie Borough – Prepared an analysis and recommendations regarding a request from 
Moulton Builders for Borough Council to remove the age restriction on the approved plan for 
140 multifamily units that was submitted under the borough’s Housing for Elderly use. 
Regarding the Zoning Ordinance Update, continued addressing comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. Also met with the Borough manager regarding 
a TCDI grant and comprehensive plan proposal. 


 Sellersville Borough – Researched and prepared analysis of single family detached parking 
requirements information related to the comprehensive plan issues. 


 Quakertown Area Planning Committee (QAPC) – Prepared the draft Quakertown Area 
Planning Committee 2011 Annual Report for the committee’s review and approval. The QAPC 
approved the annual report at their January 10, 2012 meeting. Arranged for John Brunner, 
Recreation Planner with the Appalachian Mountain Club, to attend the QAPC’s January meeting 
to provide a status update on the Highlands Program trail planning efforts in Upper Bucks 
County. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Completed first draft of a public brochure advertising the adopted comprehensive plan and its 
purpose and contents.  


 Continued development of a mixed-use development study, which will include analysis of Bucks 
County municipalities and development of model ordinance language. 


 Continued development of community indicators, which are a pivotal component of the 
comprehensive plan’s Plan Implementation and Plan Monitoring section. 


 Continued preparation of a hyperlinked version of plan narrative that will be a building block to 
the web version of the plan. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, and community 
background (or profiles). 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 


 Continued review and analysis of 2000 and 2010 block level census data for certain 
municipalities exhibiting unusual population and housing changes. 







8 


 


 Prepared the 2011 Annual Report of Review Activity. 


 Began preparation of recommended ordinance provisions to address fair housing impediments 
for certain municipalities. 


 Began the process of completing the Bucks County Analysis of Impediments report. 
 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 9 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 1 Sketch Plans 


 4 Municipals 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan   


 Assist staff with formulation of indicators to determine which comprehensive plan topics can be 
measured.   


 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Continued initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 


 Ongoing communiqué with EPA food composting grant partners regarding educational 
information and outreach and community workshops. 


 Continue to formulate timeframe for educational programs and distribution event. 


 Created first required quarterly report for the EPA food composting grant. 


 Coordinated with supplier on bin distribution.  
 


Energy Efficiency 


 Provided revisions to the draft RFP for the Direct Technical Assistance portion of the Circuit 
Rider program to DVRPC.   


 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Completed revisions to the Neshaminy Creek Watershed Stormwater Management Plan to 
incorporate the administrative language changes to the volume control criteria requirements.  


 
Potential Grant Projects 


 Formulated and submitted U.S. EPA Office of Water – Urban Small Waters Grant to conduct a 
watershed remediation study of the Otter Creek Watershed. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Held meetings with municipalities and conducted field work relative to the Route 202 on-road 
bike lane project identifying potential obstacles to development of the bike lane. 


 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Followed up on second request for municipal adoption of the Bucks County Hazard Mitigation 
Plan. 


 Organized, filed and sent copies of municipal HMP adoptions to PEMA and FEMA. 


 Currently 41 municipalities have adopted resolutions. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Briefed on regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting in Delaware County. 







9 


 


 Finalized on contract and resolution for electronic recycling program. 


 Scouted new sites for HHW and electronics. 


 Continued initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 
 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
 


General Transportation Planning  


 Conducted Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Meeting. 


 Began composing various sections of Route 202 Bicycle Lane Project Report. 
   
Public Transportation 


 Updated Digital Public Transportation Map for website. 


 Ranked New Freedoms Project applications and submitted to DVRPC. 


 Participated in New Freedoms Project ranking teleconference. 


 Reviewed Bucks County Transportation Management Association’s proposed FY 2013 Work 
Program. 


 Attended SEPTA Fare Payment Technologies Task Force Meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
  
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  


 Participated in “Linking Land Use and NEPA” webinar. 


 Reviewed Perkasie Borough Town Center Transportation Community Development Initiative 
(TCDI) Application. 


 Attended staff meeting to discuss Perkasie Borough Town Center TCDI Application. 


 Attended meeting with Perkasie Borough Manager to discuss Perkasie Borough Town Center 
TCDI Application. 


 
Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Regional Transportation Committee Meeting. 


 Attended Long Range Plan Task Force Meeting. 


 Attended Goods Movement Task Force Meeting. 


 Reviewed Congestion Management and Air Quality FY 2013 Program draft Guidelines and 
Application. 


 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 
 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 







10 


 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued editor processes of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Staff presented Floodplain GIS viewer to Hulmeville Borough Council. 


 Staff met with ESRI to discuss future software enhancements. 


 Staff attended webinar of Freeance software applications for smartphones and tablets. 


 Provided technical support to IT staff integrating new GIS hardware. 


 Provided Census 2010 voting district areas to Deputy Court Administrator. 


 Staff began verifying and identifying 911 common area sites throughout the county. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Continued work on the Community Maps Project. 


 Developed watershed map of small urban areas for environmental planning grant proposal. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 
























































































































































































































 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 


 
Wednesday, January 4, 2012 


2:00 P.M. 
 


Robert H. Grunmeier Room 
1260 Almshouse Road 
Doylestown, PA 18901 


 
 


 


AGENDA 
 
 


 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
2. Approval of Minutes for Meetings of December 7, 2011 


 
3. Information Items 


- Chairman’s Report 


- Executive Director’s Report 
 


4. Action Items 


- Act 247 Reviews 
 
5. Old Business 


- Election of Officers 
 


6. New Business 
 
7. Public Comment and Press Questions 
 
8. Adjournment 


 
 


 
Please remember to contact us at 


215-345-3400 if you cannot attend. Thank you. 
 


AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE PRIOR TO MEETING  







1 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


Minutes of Meeting 
December 7, 2011 


 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Joseph A. Cullen, Jr.; Raymond (Skip) W. Goodnoe; Darrin M. Hoffman; 


Ed Kisselback, Jr.; Robert M. Pellegrino; Carol A. Pierce; David H. Platt; 
Walter Wydro 
 


STAFF PRESENT: Lynn T. Bush; Donna W. Byers; David P. Johnson; Timothy A. Koehler; 
Charles T. McIlhinney; Margaret A. McKevitt; David A. Sebastian; 
Maureen Wheatley 


 


 
CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Kisselback called the meeting to order at 2:10 P.M. with a moment of silence 
and the pledge of allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF NOVEMBER 2, 2011 AND NOVEMBER 17, 2011: 
Upon motion of Mr. Goodnoe, seconded by Mr. Hoffman, with the vote being 8-0 the minutes of 
the November 2, 2011 and November 17, 2011 meetings were approved. There were no 
abstentions. 


 
INFORMATION ITEMS: CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS 
 
Chairman’s Report 
The meeting followed the holiday luncheon given to BCPC staff by the board. Mr. Kisselback 
thanked the staff for their hard work throughout the year. 


 
Executive Director’s Report 
The Executive Director’s Report was submitted to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Ms. Bush said Douglas Hill, executive director of the County Commissioners Association of 
Pennsylvania (CCAP), attended this morning’s Commissioners meeting and presented issues on 
oil/gas drilling. Ms. Bush and Chief Operating Officer Brian Hessenthaler attended a CCAP meeting 
in the fall where Ms. Bush was a speaker. 
 
Ms. Bush stated that the County is applying for recovery funds for damage caused by tropical storm 
Lee. The County’s eligibility is the result of the Commissioners’ adoption of the Bucks County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. To date, eleven municipalities have adopted their own plans and other 
municipalities are working toward getting their adoptions. 
 
Ms. Bush said that the Lower Bucks Chapter of the Red Cross is being dissolved and Family 
Services Association (Bucks County) is taking over the operation. The shelter will be called the Bucks 
County Emergency Homeless Shelter.  


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan Approval Process Update 
An Executive Summary of the Bucks County Comprehensive Plan was prepared and sent to the 
County Commissioners. Ms. Bush stated the Plan is on target for adoption at the Commissioners 
December 21st meeting. Mr. Kisselback thanked Mr. McIlhinney for working closely with the BCPC 
on this project. 







2 


 


Bucks County Planning Commission 2011Year-End Update 
2011 Accomplishments and Ongoing Efforts 
The board was provided with a handout on the Bucks County Planning Commission 2011Year-end 
Update (Attachment A). Ms. Bush highlighted BCPC 2011 accomplishments and ongoing efforts on 
county plans, municipal open space plans, comprehensive plans, zoning ordinances, planning 
assistance, hazardous waste program, land preservation programs, energy works program, and 
stormwater management. Mr. Koehler highlighted the subdivision and land development and 
municipal review activity; Mr. Johnson highlighted transportation planning and GIS consortium. 
 
Mr. Hoffman asked if builders are getting ready for an upswing. Mr. Koehler answered he believes 
there is a cautionary stance and it would appear unfinished projects are being finished due to the 
allowance extension time for approvals. Mr. Koehler said he will provide the board with building 
permit data from the Census Bureau at the next meeting. 
 
2012 Projects 
Ms. Bush highlighted BCPC projects for 2012 that include the County Comprehensive Plan, 
community planning outreach, economic development, Main Street programs, GIS, Countywide 
Stormwater Management Plan, open space preservation, farmland preservation, hazardous waste 
program, and monitoring county easements. Mr. Johnson highlighted the Countywide Bicycle Plan 
and Mr. Koehler highlighted Coastal Zone Management (CZM) grant submissions. 
 
Discussion focused on training programs and plan and ordinance assistance for newly elected 
township supervisors and borough council members; assisting boroughs in Main Street programs; 
CZM grant submissions; and bike permitting issues for the Route 202 bike lane and feasibility 
analysis. 
 
Mr. Kisselback asked how the Comprehensive Plan will work on the website. Mr. Koehler stated the 
process has begun on a web-based product that will apply hyperlinks to reduce text.  
 
Mr. Goodnoe suggested outreach to the Bucks County Association of Township Officials on the 
County Comprehensive Plan and GIS Consortium. Mr. Kisselback suggested putting together a 
packet for municipalities that would highlight the BCPC and what it has to offer. 


 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Act 247 Reviews 
The reviews of December 7, 2011 were mailed to the board for their review prior to the meeting. 
On motion of Mr. Wydro, seconded by Ms. Pierce, the board approved the December 7, 2011 Act 
247 reviews. There were no abstentions. 


 
OLD BUSINESS: The Nominating Committee recommended retaining the current officers for next 
year. Reorganization of the Board will be voted on in January. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: Mr. Cullen asked if there are any openings on the BCPC board for 2012. Ms. Bush 
replied no. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 2:45 P.M. 


 
Submitted by: 


       Donna W. Byers, Staff Secretary  







4 


 


BUCKS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
Staff Report 


December 2011 
 


PLANNING SERVICES 
 
COMMUNITY PLANNING 
 


 Meeting Attendance – Attended the regular planning commission meetings of Buckingham 
Township, Sellersville Borough, and the Quakertown Area Planning Committee. 


 Langhorne Borough Comprehensive Plan – Continued preparation of chapters related to 
demographic, land use, and development trends, historic resources, natural resources, and goals 
and objectives. Developed draft agenda for town hall meeting including information for 
interactive work stations to facilitate the public input process.  


 Hulmeville Borough Zoning Ordinance – Met with Borough Council to review and discuss 
the final draft of the zoning ordinance. 


 Perkasie Borough Zoning Ordinance Update – Addressing comments on the draft zoning 
ordinance from planning commission members. 


 Sellersville Borough Open Space Plan – Attended the Bucks County Open Space Board 
meeting December 7 with borough officials to present proposed open space transfer.   


 Sellersville Borough – Researched and prepared information related to the comprehensive 
plan. 


 Morrsiville Borough – Examined block level census data and met with borough official 
concerning discrepancies between 2010 and 2000 figures. 


 
Bucks County Comprehensive Plan 


 Began development of a public brochure advertising the adopted comprehensive plan and its 
purpose and contents.  


 Began development of a mixed-use development study, which will include analysis of Bucks 
County municipalities and development of model ordinance language. 


 Began development of community indicators which is a pivotal component of the 
comprehensive plan’s Plan Implementation and Plan Monitoring section. 


 Continued preparation of a hyperlinked version of plan narrative that will be a building block to 
the web version of the plan. 
 


Planning Information and Agency Coordination 


 Provided information to the public on various topics including, but not limited to, development 
proposals, review letters, local zoning and municipal regulations, floodplain, and community 
background (or profiles). 


 Responded to inquiries from several municipalities regarding potential fair housing impediments 
in their municipal zoning ordinances. Provided examples of alternate ordinance provisions that 
could be adopted to eliminate potential conflicts with the federal fair housing laws (Fair Housing 
Act). 


 Attended Bucks County Homeless Continuum of Care meetings. 


 Reviewed Act 14, 67, 68 NPDES permit applications. 


 Reviewed and commented on draft DVRPC regional housing plan. 


 Review and commented on draft DVRPC 2040 and 5-year interim population forecasts. 


 Continued production of census and American Community Survey datasheets. 







5 


 


 Continued review and analysis of 2000 and 2010 block level census data for certain 
municipalities exhibiting unusual population and housing changes. 


Act 247 and 537 Review Activity 


 11 Subdivision and Land Development Proposals 


 3 Municipals 
 


ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING 
 


Bucks County Comprehensive Plan   


 Assisted staff with formulation of indicators to determine which comprehensive plan topics can 
be measured.   


 
Bucks Employees Green Initiative (BEGIN) Committee 


 Met with EPA food composting grant project partners to further refine educational outreach 
efforts and programs.  Discussed logistics, presentations, on-site tours and educational outreach 
programs to offer. Met with BCYC staff and residents (art class) who will be working on the 
redesign of existing educational brochures to bring them up-to-date. 


 Compost bins and rain barrels have been partially installed.  Final modifications will take place 
within the next few weeks.  


 Continue to formulate timeframe for educational programs and distribution event.  
 


Energy Efficiency 


 Reviewed draft RFP for the Direct Technical Assistance portion of the Circuit Rider program.   
 
Stormwater and Flood Management Planning 


 Prepared draft revisions to the Neshaminy Creek Watershed Stormwater Management Plan to 
incorporate the administrative language changes to the volume control criteria requirements.  


 Assisting with revisions to the Pennypack Creek Act 167 Stormwater Management Plan in 
coordination with Montgomery and Philadelphia Counties.  


 Reviewed and commented on Poquessing Creek Watershed Stormwater Management Plan Draft Model 
Ordinance.  


 Reviewed and commented on multiple municipal stormwater management ordinance 
amendments. 


 Researching information and developing resources to assist municipalities with the revised 
NPDES MS4 permit.  Drafting memo to send to all MS4 municipalities to encourage them to 
attend the upcoming Bucks County MS4 stormwater permit training workshop to be hosted by 
DEP, EPA, and the DCED on January 24, 2012. 


 Assisted the public and municipal officials with the preliminary floodplain maps distributed by 
FEMA and the Floodplain Viewer Tool.  


 
Potential Grant Projects 


 Began formulating a draft grant proposal for the U.S. EPA Office of Water – Small Urban 
Waters Grant. 


 Compiled U. S. Census data and existing data regarding plans and reports for watersheds and 
bodies of water in the lower portion of Bucks County. 


 
Coastal Zone Planning 


 Attended Delaware Estuary Coastal Zone Steering Committee meeting at DVRPC for ranking 
proposed projects for FY2012. 







6 


 


 Four staff members presented grant proposals to Coastal Zone Management Steering 
Committee at interviews for CZM grants for FY2012 as follows: 


1. Neshaminy Creek Watershed Sediment Reduction Plan; 
2. Bucks County Non-point Source Pollution Prevention Educational Outreach; 
3. Bucks County Illegal Dumping Prevention Program; 
4. Mill (Otter) – Queen Anne Creek Greenway Multiuse Trail Feasibility Study. 


 
Bucks County Open Space & Greenway Plan 


 Submitted grant application for Phase II of the Delaware Valley Regional Planning 
Commission’s Regional Trails Funding Program. Application was submitted for the purpose of 
funding a multi-use trail feasibility study for the upper section of the Neshaminy Creek 
Greenway extending from Doylestown to Rushland. 


 
Hazard Mitigation Planning 


 Sent out second request for municipal adoption of the Bucks County Hazard Mitigation Plan. 


 Organized, filed and sent copies of municipal HMP adoptions to PEMA and FEMA. 
 
Recycling and Solid Waste 


 Attended regional (five-county) HHW planning meeting in Delaware County to review 2011 
program and plan for 2012. 


 Worked on contract and resolution for electronic recycling program. 


 Continued initial steps in implementation of the EPA food composting grant. 
 


Public Information/Education 


 Spoke to Southeast Chapter of Assessors Association of PA about planning and environmental 
issues in Bucks County and the region. 


 


TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
General Transportation Planning 


 Continued developing background information for Intersection Safety Study. 


 Conducted Bicycle Task Force Meeting. 


 Attended U.S. 202 Section 700 Task Force Meeting. 


 Initiated work on the 202 On Road Bicycle Lane Study. 


 Attended the Bucks TMA annual meeting. 


 Attended the Pa 611 Corridor Access Management Meeting. 
 
Public Transportation 


 Attended SEPTA Capital Budget meeting. 
 
Transportation Assistance to Planning Staff 


 Discussed transportation related issues with staff for subdivision and land development reviews. 
 
Transportation Improvement Program 


 Provided TIP information to various individuals and agencies.  
 


  







7 


 


Delaware Valley Regional Planning Commission (DVRPC)  


 Attended Transportation Operations Task Force Meeting. 


 Attended the regional TIP development meeting. 
 
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 


Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 


 Continued development of County-Wide Enterprise GIS program. 


 Continued database development of site addresses and EMS, Fire, and Police response zones. 


 Continued updating of Enterprise Geodatabase and ArcGIS Server. 


 Continued coordination with GIS consultant on the Land Records and EMS projects. 


 Continued development and support of County GIS Consortium efforts. 


 Continued updating and editing of county Road Centerline database. 


 Continued GIS technical software support to IT and GIS staff at Board of Assessment. 


 Continued support of County hosted GIS web server connection and interface. 


 Provided GIS technical support to Emergency Communication staff. 


 Continued technical support for MapJazz GIS Web Viewer. 


 Continued development of GIS datasets for inclusion in ESRI hosted Community Map. 


 Continued editor processes of county-wide data layers using GIS Data Reviewer tool. 


 Provided technical support related to GIS Floodplain viewer. 


 Continued development of county-wide preserved properties web viewer. 


 Staff attended presentation and training for VisionAir AVL project. 


 Staff compiled GIS Consortium data for Northampton Township. 
 
GIS Map Production 


 Continued work on the Community Maps Project. 
 
GIS Transportation 


 Continued development of Region-wide GIS Transportation initiative. 
 





































































































































































































